
PARK BOARD AGENDA 

1 

MEETING SCHEDULE 
Tuesday, September 19, 2023, at 5:00 pm 
Council Chambers 
229 S. 2nd Street, Elkhart, IN  46516 

CALL TO ORDER 
1. ROLL CALL

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
 August 15, 2023
 August 29, 2023

4. APPROVAL OF FINANCIALS
 Claims - $55,653.52
 Donations - $0
 Grants - $0

5. NEW BUSINESS MATTERS
a. Amended Restrictions
b. Cardinal Bus Contract

6. OLD BUSINESS
a. Sinclair Recreation Ratification

7. USE AND EVENT PERMIT
a. Dink for Kids – September 22, 2023 – Studebaker Park
b. Rio’s Rainbow Community Picnic – October 7, 2023 – Island Park
c. Ugly Sweater 5K – December 2, 2023 – NIBCO Water & Ice Park
d. Fall Pop-Up Market – November 4, 2023 – High Dive Pavilion

8. DEPARTMENT REPORT

9. CORRESPONDENCE
a. None

10. PUBLIC INPUT/PRIVILEGE OF THE FLOOR

ADJOURNMENT  
NEXT REGULAR PARK BOARD MEETING OCTOBER 17, 2023, COUNCIL CHAMBERS. 
FINANCIALS ONLY MEETING OCTOBER 3, 2023, PARKS OFFICE 



        City of Elkhart Parks & Recreation 
     Park Board Minutes 

 

1 
 

 
 
 

Call to Order at 5:03 PM. 
1. Roll Call- Quorum Present 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT 
Sarah Santerre 
President 
 

Nekeisha Alayna Alexis 
Vice President 
 

Mark Datema 
Secretary 
 

Christopher Baiker 
Treasurer 

   Absent, 
Joe Foy, Proxy 

 
2. Approval of Agenda 
 

Motion to Approve Agenda 
Motion: MD 
Second: JF 
Motion passes with unanimous voice vote 

 
3. Approval of Minutes 

 
July 18, 2023 
August 1, 2023 
Motion to Approve 
Motion: MD 
Second: JF 
Motion passes with unanimous voice vote 

 
 
4. Approval of Financials 

 
 
 
 

Motion to discuss, approve, and place on file 
Motion: JF 
Second: MD 
Motion passes with unanimous voice vote 
 
There are no questions from the Board. 
 

5. New Business 
a. Cardinal Bus Contract 

Ms. Gordon explains that the contract is for a department-sponsored bus trip to 
Schaumburg, Illinois, to shop at Ikea and the Woodfield Mall. 
Motion: MD 
Second: JF 
Motion passes with unanimous voice vote 

 

DATE: August 15, 2023 

TIME: 5:00 PM 

LOCATION: 
City of Elkhart Parks & Recreation 
Council Chambers 
229 S. 2nd Street, Elkhart, IN 46516 

Claims: $69,445.13 
 

 

Donations: $0 
Grants: $0 



        City of Elkhart Parks & Recreation 
     Park Board Minutes 

 

2 
 

6. Old Business 
a. None 

 
7. Use and Event Permit 

a. Labor Day Parade – September 4, 2023 – Use of Park Stage 
Ms. Gordon presents the permit on behalf of Karla Schwartz, Parade Organizer. The event is 
requesting the use of the park stage. 
Motion: JF 
Second: MD 
Motion passes with unanimous voice vote 

b. Trunk-or-Treat – October 21, 2023 – Island Park 
Ms. Gordon presents the permit. This is the 11th year for the event.  
Mr. Datema asks if it is prepackaged candy only. Ms. Gordon confirms that it is. 
Motion to approve 
Motion: JF 
Second: MD 
Motion passes with a  unanimous voice vote. 

c. Pine “Not-So-Haunted” Woods Walk – October 28, 2023 – Pinewood Park 
Ms. Gordon presents the permit. Elkhart Police and Fire partner with the Department for this 
trick-or-treating event.  
Motion to approve 
Motion: JF 
Second: MD 
Motion passes with unanimous voice vote 

d. Elkhart Farmers Market Pop-Ups – Various Dates – High Dive Pavilion 
Ms. Gordon presents the permit. The Elkhart Farmers Market will continue once a month 
through the winter.  
Motion to approve 
Motion: NAA 
Second: MD 
Motion passes with unanimous voice vote 
 

8. Department Report 
Mr. Cron reports that Ideal Beach and Pierre Moran Pool are closed for the season. McNaughton Spray 
Park will remain open for the weekends until August 27. Improvements are coming for Woodlawn Nature 
Center and the tower at High Dive Park. Gearldean Thursby Tot Lot received some upgrades, including 
a new swing set. A new lead ranger, Nhim Dahn, has been hired. Mr. Dahn was previously a part-time 
park ranger. 
Ms. Gordon reports that the Department assisted the Elkhart Police Department with the National Night 
Out Against Crime event on August 1. The department planned the entertainment. Nine staff members 
helped at the Elkhart Environmental Center’s EnviroFest. The Elkhart Farmers Market continues to see 
1,000 people each week. August 26 will be Dog Day at the Market. The annual Food Truck and Tailgate 
party will be August 26 for the Navy and Notre Dame game in Ireland.  
Ms. Gordon informs the Board that Truma Corp has adopted High Dive Park.  
Ms. Ixmatlahua provides program updates. 
 

 
9. Public Input/Privilege of the Floor 

Ms. Santerre opens the privilege of the floor. 
 

Ms. Santerre closes the privilege of the floor. 
 



        City of Elkhart Parks & Recreation 
     Park Board Minutes 

 

3 
 

10. Approval for Adjournment 
Motion to adjourn 
Motion: MD 
Second: JF 
Motion passes with unanimous voice vote 
Adjourn 5:28 pm 

 
 
PARKS & RECREATION STAFF MEMBERS IN ATTENDANCE 
Luisa Ixmatlahua-Garay, Program Coordinator 
Nick Cron, Operations Manager 
 

Sommer Bowers, Office Manager 
Jennifer Kobie, Recording Secretary 
 

 
 
ADDITIONAL CITY EMPLOYEES AND GUESTS IN ATTENDANCE 
   
 
 
Minutes Certification: 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 

_______________________________________________  ___________________________________________ 
Recording Secretary   Jennifer Kobie    Date 
 

_______________________________________________  ____________________________________________ 
Park Board President   Sarah Santerre    Date 
 

_______________________________________________  _____________________________________________ 
Park Board Secretary  Mark Datema    Date 



        City of Elkhart Parks & Recreation 
     Park Board Minutes 

 

1 
 

 
 
 

Call to Order at 5:06 PM. 
1. Roll Call- Quorum Present 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT 
Sarah Santerre 
President 
 

Nekeisha Alayna Alexis 
Vice President 
 

Mark Datema 
Secretary 

Chris Baiker 
Treasurer 

   
 

Absent 

 
2. Approval of Agenda 
 

Motion to Approve Agenda 
Motion: NAA  
Second: MD 
Motion passes with a unanimous voice vote 

 
3. Approval of Financials 

 
 
 
 

Motion to discuss, approve, and place on file 
Motion: MD 
Second: NAA 
Motion passes with a unanimous voice vote 

 
There is no discussion. 
 

4. New Business 
a. Memorandum of Understanding CARE University 

Ms. Ixmatlahua states that the MOU is for the use of the Roosevelt Center for an afterschool 
program. 
Motion to approve  
Motion: MD 
Second: NAA 
Motion passes with unanimous voice vote 

b. Sinclair Recreation Ratification 
Motion to table 
Motion: MD 
Second: NAA 
Motion passes with unanimous voice vote 

c. Michiana Rental Contract 
The contract is for a tent at the Island of Blues.  
Motion to approve 

DATE: August 29, 2023 

TIME: 5:00 PM 

LOCATION: 
City of Elkhart Parks & Recreation 
229 S. 2nd Street, Elkhart, IN 46516 

Claims: $50,301.81 
 

 

Donations: $0 
Grants: $0 



        City of Elkhart Parks & Recreation 
     Park Board Minutes 

 

2 
 

Motion: MD 
Second: NAA 
Motion passes with unanimous voice vote 

d. Board of Zoning Appeals Case #23-WT-01 
The case concerns a wireless tower to be built on private property near Pinewood Park. The 
Board decided to take no action.  

 
5. Use and Event Permits 

a. Meet & Greet with Jerry Abell – September 9, 2023 – Sterling Park 
Mr. Abell presents the permit. Mr. Abell is running for the 4th District Council seat and would 
like to host a meet and greet for citizens to stop by and get information and free hot dogs. 
The Board asks the Legal Department if anything prevents Mr. Abell from using the park to 
campaign. Ms. Rivera will look into it. 
Motion to approve conditional on Legal Department’s approval 
Motion: NAA 
Second: MD 
Motion passes with unanimous voice vote 

b. Sarah Strong Run 5K and Kids Fun Run – September 23, 2023 – Lundquist-
Bicentennial Park 
Ms. Kylee Kendall of Passionately Purple: The Sarah Strong Foundation presents the permit. 
This is an annual event to raise money and awareness. Ms. Kendall is working with Lt. Bias 
of the Elkhart Police for the race route.  
Motion to approve 
Motion: MD 
Second: NAA 
Motion passes with unanimous voice vote 

 
6. Public Input/Privilege of the Floor 

Ms. Santerre opens the privilege of the floor. 
 

Ms. Santerre closes the privilege of the floor. 
 

7. Approval for Adjournment 
Motion to adjourn 
Motion: NAA 
Second: MD 
Motion passes with a unanimous voice vote 
Adjourn 5:34 pm 

 
PARKS & RECREATION STAFF MEMBERS IN ATTENDANCE 
Sommer Bowers, Office Manager 
Luisa Ixmatlahua, Program Coordinator 

Jennifer Kobie, Recording Secretary 
 

 
ADDITIONAL CITY EMPLOYEES AND GUESTS IN ATTENDANCE 
Deb Barett, City Clerk Rose Rivera, Legal Department, via 

Webex 
Mr. Jerry Abell 
Ms. Kylee Kendall 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



        City of Elkhart Parks & Recreation 
     Park Board Minutes 

 

3 
 

Minutes Certification: 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 

_______________________________________________  ___________________________________________ 
Recording Secretary   Jennifer Kobie    Date 
 

_______________________________________________  ____________________________________________ 
Park Board President   Sarah Santerre    Date 
 

_______________________________________________  _____________________________________________ 
Park Board Secretary  Mark Datema    Date 















AMENDED RESTRICTIONS OF 
RESTRICTIONS OF IDEAL BEACH 4TH ADDITION 
OF HEATON LAKE, ELKHART COUNTY, INDIANA, 

OCTOBER 1, 1946 
DOCUMENT NUMBER 20003-00088 

 

IDEAL BEACH 4TH ADDITION consists of twelve (12) parcels. Restriction 4 of the plat 
provides “The owners of said lots shall use property for building cottages or permanent 
homes and in no case shall property be used for commercial purposes except for 
renting for dwelling purposes.” 

1. The owners of the parcels agree that Restriction 4 of the platted addition shall 
be deleted from the restriction of the Addition and shall be replaced with the 
following restriction that provides: “The owners of said lots shall use property 
for building of cottages or permanent homes and in no case shall property be 
used for commercial purposes except for renting for dwelling purposes, with an 
exception for ‘Busy Lil Beavers,’ a landscaping business owned by Zachary 
Beavernier & Lauren Beavernier and located at parcel number 20-02-24-304-
010.000-026, which shall be allowed to remain so long as it is the beneficiary of 
a special use permit, subject to and limited by the site plan submitted to the 
County Board of Zoning Appeals on February 27, 2023. The exception to 
general Restriction 4 for ‘Busy Lil Beavers’ does not run with the land.” 

 All other restrictions shall remain in place: 

2. All dwellings, garages and other buildings must be constructed on solid 
concrete or cement block or brick foundations.  

3. All outdoor toilets shall be of an improved, sanitary type, constructed and 
installed according to government specifications, and shall be erected to the 
rear of lot.  

4. Roofs of all cottages, dwellings, garages and other buildings shall have approved 
roof of composition, slate, tile or non-combustible materials. 

5. The owners of said lots shall use property for building of cottages or permanent 
homes and in no case shall property be used for commercial purposes except 
for renting for dwelling purposes, with an exception for ‘Busy Lil Beavers,’ a 
landscaping business owned by Zachary Beavernier & Lauren Beavernier and 
located at parcel number 20-02-24-304-010.000-026, which shall be allowed to 
remain so long as it is the beneficiary of a special use permit, subject to and 
limited by the site plan submitted to the County Board of Zoning Appeals on 
February 27, 2023. The exception to general Restriction 4 for ‘Busy Lil Beavers’ 
does not run with the land. 

 

_____________________________    _____________________________ 
Ty Miller       Cathy Miller 
22735 Heaton Vista      22735 Heaton Vista 
Elkhart, Indiana 46514     Elkhart, Indiana 46514 



 
 
 
 
STATE OF INDIANA  ) 
    ) SS: 
COUNTY OF ELKHART ) 
 
 Before me, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, personally 
appeared Cathy Miller, and acknowledged the execution of the foregoing Amended 
Restrictions as her true and voluntary act.  
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto affixed my hand and Notarial Seal this 
_______ day of ________________, 2023. 
 
My Commission Expires:          __________________________________ 
               , Notary Public 
              Residing in ___________County, IN 
 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF INDIANA  ) 
    ) SS: 
COUNTY OF ELKHART ) 
 
 Before me, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, personally 
appeared Ty Miller, and acknowledged the execution of the foregoing Amended 
Restrictions as her true and voluntary act.  
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto affixed my hand and Notarial Seal this 
_______ day of ________________, 2023. 
 
My Commission Expires:          __________________________________ 
               , Notary Public 
              Residing in ___________County, IN 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
__________________________          _______________________________________ 
Zachary M. Beavernier            Lauren M. Beavernier 
Formerly known as Zachary M. Beaver            Formerly known as Lauren M. Tavernier 
22799 Heaton Vista     22799 Heaton Vista 
Elkhart, Indiana 46514    Elkhart, Indiana 46514 
 

 
 
 
STATE OF INDIANA  ) 
    ) SS: 
COUNTY OF ELKHART ) 
 
 Before me, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, personally 
appeared Zachary M. Beavernier, and acknowledged the execution of the foregoing 
Amended Restrictions as her true and voluntary act.  
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto affixed my hand and Notarial Seal this 
_______ day of ________________, 2023. 
 
My Commission Expires:          __________________________________ 
               , Notary Public 
              Residing in ___________County, IN 
 
 
 
STATE OF INDIANA  ) 
    ) SS: 
COUNTY OF ELKHART ) 
 
 Before me, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, personally 
appeared Lauren M. Beavernier, and acknowledged the execution of the foregoing 
Amended Restrictions as her true and voluntary act.  
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto affixed my hand and Notarial Seal this 
_______ day of ________________, 2023. 
 
My Commission Expires:          __________________________________ 
               , Notary Public 
              Residing in ___________County, IN 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



________________________________    ________________________________ 
Timothy D. Tavernier     City of Elkhart, Indiana 
2289 Heaton Vista      By: ____________________________ 
Elkhart, Indiana 46514           (Printed Name) 
        ________________________________ 
        Municipal Building 
        229 S. Second Street 
        Elkhart, Indiana 46516 
STATE OF INDIANA  ) 
    ) SS: 
COUNTY OF ELKHART ) 
 
 Before me, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, personally 
appeared Timothy D. Tavernier, and acknowledged the execution of the foregoing 
Amended Restrictions as her true and voluntary act.  
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto affixed my hand and Notarial Seal this 
_______ day of ________________, 2023. 
 
My Commission Expires:          __________________________________ 
               , Notary Public 
              Residing in ___________County, IN 
  
 
 
STATE OF INDIANA  ) 
    ) SS: 
COUNTY OF ELKHART ) 
 
 Before me, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, personally 
appeared ______________________, representative of the City of Elkhart, and 
acknowledged the execution of the foregoing Amended Restrictions as her true and 
voluntary act.  
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto affixed my hand and Notarial Seal this 
_______ day of ________________, 2023. 
 
My Commission Expires:          __________________________________ 
               , Notary Public 
              Residing in ___________County, IN 
 
 
I affirm under the penalties for perjury, that I have taken reasonable care to redact 
each Social Security number in this document, unless required by law.  
  
        _/s/ Rose M. Rivera____________ 
                Rose M. Rivera 
 
This instrument was prepared by Rose M. Rivera, City Attorney, 229 S. Second Street, 

Elkhart, Indiana 46516 



Cardinal Buses, LLC
A division of GO Riteway Transportation Group

202 Winslow Street 
Middlebury, IN 46540 

www.CardinalBuses.com 

Maddy Gordon 
Elkhart City Parks & Recreation 
229 S 2nd St. 
Elkhart, IN 46516 
Wednesday, September 6, 2023    

Charter ID 45689
Charter Confirmation

Dear Maddy: 
Thank you for selecting Cardinal Buses, LLC for your upcoming trip Saturday, May 11, 2024 to Saturday, May 11, 2024.  We 
are committed to providing you with the very best service possible. This confirmation serves as your contract for your 
transportation needs. In order to provide the best possible service, we ask that you review the attached transportation details 
for accuracy.  
Please contact us immediately if you see something that needs to be changed or have any questions.  
Middlebury, IN: 800.348.7487 /  Zeeland, MI: 800.521.6006  
Your complete itinerary is due at the time of reservation.  Please send your final itinerary 21 days prior to the departure 
date to ensure the success of your trip. Changes made 7 days or less prior to your trip can not be guaranteed. 
A 25% payment is due at time of booking with the remaining balance due 21 days prior to the departure date unless you are 
set up for invoicing. If paying with credit card, an additional 3.4% surcharge will be added to this trip. This amount is not 
greater than our cost of acceptance. Payments made by check or ACH are not subject to a surcharge.  Please send check 
payments to Cardinal Buses, LLC, Bin #88168, Milwaukee, WI 53288 and include the Charter ID on each payment. 
Cancellation Policy:   
Trips cancelled more than 21 days prior to departure date will be refunded in full. 
Trips cancelled 14 - 21 days prior to departure date will be assessed a 25% cancellation fee. 
Trips cancelled 7 - 13 days prior to departure date will be assessed a 50% cancellation fee. 
Trips cancelled 0 - 6 days prior to departure date are non-refundable. 
To view your charters, make payments via online and request quotations you may click on the link below for your Client Portal.  
You can also access your portal by logging into portal.cardinalbuses.com/login.  Please use the email address you provided us 
to login along with a password.  We have set up your password for your initial login which you can change.   
The password is: client
Client Portal Link: https://portal.cardinalbuses.com/Booking/DisplayBooking/D41C7929011518168BC942648BE5FE06 

Payment Due Net 30 

_________________________________________________________ 
Charter Party Authorized Signature                        Date 

Please read, sign and return this confirmation

Sincerely, 
Shealvonne Jones 
Account Manager 
  

  

kobiejen
Highlight

kobiejen
Highlight



Cardinal Buses, LLC
Go Riteway Transportation Group 

Terms and Conditions 

Liability Agreement
This agreement is a contract for the hire of transportation services by GO Riteway Transportation services by GO Riteway 
Transportation Group and Cardinal Buses, LLC. GO Riteway/Cardinal Buses, LLC will not be liable for delays caused by an 
act of God, accidents that are not GO Riteway/Cardinal Buses, LLC-initiated, poor weather conditions, traffic detours and/or 
conditions beyond control of GO Riteway/Cardinal Buses, LLC.  GO Riteway/Cardinal Buses, LLC reserves the right to 
terminate service if the safety of the driver, passengers, or the vehicle becomes compromised.  In the event of a breakdown, 
GO Riteway/Cardinal Buses, LLC will make every reasonable effort to provide a replacement vehicle as soon as possible. 

Behavior
The charter party shall not interfere with the driver in the discharge of his/her duty, or tamper with any apparatus/appliance on 
the vehicle.  GO Riteway/Cardinal Buses, LLC reserves the right to refuse to transport persons under the influence of 
intoxicating liquors or drugs, or is likely to become such, as to be objectionable to other persons.  GO Riteway/Cardinal Buses, 
LLC driver also has the right to remove any disruptive passengers and/or those doing harm to the vehicle or other passengers.  
If at any time the service is terminated due to unruly conduct, damages to the vehicle/driver or abuse of any kind that GO 
Riteway/Cardinal Buses, LLC deems valid, no refund of money will be made. 

Chaperone
Charter party agrees that a responsible person of at least 25 years of age for each vehicle chartered will be assigned for the 
purpose of providing adequate supervision, discipline and assume responsibility for the compliance by passengers. 

Damage
Decisions as to the unusual use or wear of the vehicle rest with GO Riteway/Cardinal Buses, LLC solely, and its experience as 
to the general use of hired vehicles.  Charter party is fully responsible for the repair and or replacement of any part of the 
vehicle harmed by any passenger. 

Lost or Stolen Items
GO Riteway/Cardinal Buses, LLC will make every reasonable effort to locate any lost items.  However, GO Riteway/Cardinal 
Buses, LLC will not be responsible for lost or stolen items.  Luggage and personal belongings should be taken off the vehicle 
each night or when members of the charter leave the vehicle and are handled by GO Riteway/Cardinal Buses, LLC driver at 
customer’s own risk.  At the driver’s discretion, any items can be refused transport due to weight, size of inappropriate 
contents. 

Smoking
NO smoking or drug use is permitted on any vehicle.  A fee of $250 for each occurrence will be charged if damage occurs by 
the charter party or anyone in the vehicle. 

Alcoholic Beverages
Use of alcohol must be approved prior to departure.  The charter party is required to pay a fee of $250 should alcohol be 
consumed on board.  This fee will be refunded in full pending condition of the coach.  Passengers over 21 are permitted to 
bring alcohol aboard the vehicle in cans and plastic containers only.  Glass is not permitted.  Beer kegs are not allowed in the 
passenger compartment of the vehicle.  Alcoholic beverages are NOT PERMITTED while in the City of Chicago, in 
accordance with Municipal Code Chapter Section 9-114. 

Cleaning Fee
Cleanliness is the joint responsibility of both the charter party and GO Riteway/Cardinal Buses, LLC driver.  Drivers will make 
every effort to keep the vehicle clean and washroom serviced on extended trips.  Any food or drink on the coach is a privilege 
and can be revoked by the driver if inappropriate behavior warrants such action.  A cleaning fee of at least $250 will be applied 
when vehicle is returned in an unacceptable condition due to food, beverage or abuse. 



Cancellation Policy
Cancellations must be submitted and confirmed by GO Riteway/Cardinal Buses, LLC.  We require more than 21 days notice 
prior to departure date for a full refund.  Cancellations between 14 and 21 days prior to departure will incur a 25% fee.  
Cancellations between 7 and 13 days prior to departure will incur a 50% fee.  Cancellations between 0 and 6 days prior to 
departure are non-refundable.  Charter party must receive a confirmation of the cancellation from GO Riteway/Cardinal Buses, 
LLC to confirm the cancellation. 

Multi-Days Trips
Charter party is responsible for reserving and paying for GO Riteway/Cardinal Buses, LLC driver’s hotel room on multi-day 
and overnight trips.  No room sharing, college dormitories, Bed and Breakfasts, camps or private residences are allowed.  It is 
the responsibility of the charter party to ensure the hotel has bus parking available for the extent of the driver’s stay.  If charter 
party fails to make such arrangements, or GO Riteway/Cardinal Buses, LLC deems the hotel or parking to be of substandard 
quality or security, GO Riteway/Cardinal Buses, LLC reserves the right to book the most convenient option available with 
sufficient parking at full charge to the charter party. 

Payment
Unless otherwise noted, payment arrangements must be established at the time of booking the order.  Full payment is due 
prior to 21 days of charter date.  We impose a surcharge of 3.4% on credit card products, which is not greater than the cost of 
acceptance.  Payments made by check or ACH are not subject to a surcharge. 

Economic Recovery Charge
Due to the unpredictability in transportation operating costs, GO Riteway/Cardinal Buses, LLC reserves the right to re-price 
trips 21 - 30 days before start date and advise client if a rate increase is necessary to execute the trip.  Client has the option to 
cancel the trip with no penalty should the increase be objectionable. 

Fuel Contingency
Should fuel prices increase, GO Riteway/Cardinal Buses, LLC reserves the right to adjust the contracted price accordingly 
with a fuel surcharge. 

WiFi
GO Riteway/Cardinal Buses, LLC motorcoaches are equipped with free and open network WiFi provided for convenience.  
Users access this at their own risk.  It is available to the general public and is not inherently secure.  It is provided on an “as 
available” basis without any warranties of any kind.  Under no circumstances shall GO Riteway/Cardinal Buses, LLC be liable 
for any damages resulting from using or inability to use WiFi. 
Audio Visual
GO Riteway/Cardinal Buses, LLC will be held harmless for the malfunction of any entertainment equipment onboard the 
vehicle.  The charter party is to provide their own entertainment media and responsible for its use and adherence to all 
international copyright and viewing laws.  No tampering is allowed with any visual/audio equipment on GO Riteway/Cardinal 
Buses, LLC vehicles.  Movies are subject to the driver’s approval.  No adult, mature or pornographic videos are allowed. 

DOT Regulations
Per Department of Transportation Regulations drivers are not allowed to drive for more than 10 consecutive hours and not 
drive without being off for eight hours following ten hours of driving.  Extended trips may require additional drivers to conform 
to DOT requirements.  The total number of passengers cannot exceed seating capacity of the vehicle and all passengers 
regardless of age must be in a seat.  Coaches that are equipped with wheelchair lifts are limited to 600 pounds which will be 
allowed to board the motorcoach. 



Itinerary
Clients are to provide a complete detailed itinerary which is required upon reservation.  GO Riteway/Cardinal Buses, LLC 
reserves the right to choose, establish or change routing as it deems necessary.  Charter party may specify a particular route, 
which may result in additional charges.  GO Riteway/Cardinal Buses, LLC is not responsible for missed appointments or 
estimated times of arrivals. 
Failure to receive the final detailed itinerary 21 days before the trip may result in cancellation of the trip.  Charter party will be 
responsible for full payment and no refund will be made. 
GO Riteway/Cardinal Buses, LLC will make every effort to edit charters; however, changes made 7 days or less prior to 
departure date are not guaranteed. 

Additional Charges
This trip has been priced and scheduled based on the information provided.  The final price is subject to change based on 
charter party’s final itinerary as well as the actual, drive itinerary.  If chartered party deviates significantly, a minimum of $75 
per hour will be billed for additional hours.  GO Riteway/Cardinal Buses, LLC drivers do not calculate, collect or determine 
what additional money is owed on a reservation.  Additional charges are billed at the office the next business day after the trip 
occurs.  Any damage to the vehicle, caused by the charger party, will be charged by GO Riteway/Cardinal Buses, LLC to the 
charter party.  This would include any loss-of-use charges. 

Driver Gratuities
Driver gratuities are usually not automatically included in the cost of the trip.  Tipping is customary and appreciated, but it is up 
to the customer to decide based on the service they receive. 

COVID-19
Customer, and/or passengers for whom customer chartered the vehicle(s), may be exposed to the novel coronavirus that is 
responsible for causing COVID-19.  COVID-19 is a potentially serious, even deadly, disease for which there is currently no 
cure.  The Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (“CDC”) considers COVID-19 to be highly contagious and spread 
mainly from person-to-person through respiratory droplets that are expelled when infected person sneezes, coughs, or talks.  
Some infected people show no symptoms.  There are millions of COVID-19 infections in the United States.  The 
circumstances and CDC guidelines about COVID-19 frequently change.  Customer accepts full responsibility for familiarizing 
themselves, and/or passengers for whom customer chartered the vehicle(s), with the most recent updates.  The risk of 
contracting COVID-19 may be lessened if customer and/or other passengers for whom customer chartered the vehicle(s) wear 
face masks while in the vehicle, but, the risk of exposure and contracting the disease cannot be eliminated and exposure to 
COVID-19 or the novel coronavirus may result in quarantine obligations, serious illness, temporary or permanent disability or 
death. 
After considering the risks of riding in a Riteway vehicle, customer agrees not to bring any action or lawsuit against Riteway for any illness, 
injury, or death arising from the novel coronavirus or COVID-19.





kobiejen
Highlight

kobiejen
Highlight

kobiejen
Highlight



















kobiejen
Highlight

kobiejen
Highlight

kobiejen
Highlight

kobiejen
Highlight

kobiejen
Highlight















kobiejen
Highlight

kobiejen
Highlight





kobiejen
Highlight

kobiejen
Highlight

kobiejen
Highlight

kobiejen
Highlight

kobiejen
Highlight

kobiejen
Highlight

kobiejen
Highlight





















kobiejen
Highlight















kobiejen
Highlight





The Honorable 
Rod Roberson 
Mayor  
 

Jamison Czarnecki 
Parks Superintendent 

 

 

Parks & Recreation 

1320 Benham Ave. 

Elkhart, IN 46516 

 

574.295.7275 

Fax:  574.522-7808 
 

 
MEMO 
 
To: Board of Elkhart Parks and Recreation 
 
From: Jamison Czarnecki, Superintendent 
 
Date: 9-19-23 
 
Re: Parks Department Report 
 

 
Superintendent’s Update (Jamison Czarnecki) 

 New picnic tables and trashcans have been installed at Studebaker Park.  

 The windmill at High Dive Park has new improvements and upgrades being done and is hoped to be completed 
this fall.  

 We want to say thank you to NIBCO for installing the art piece at NIBCO Ice and Water Park for the Downtown 
After Dark week. The public is encouraged to come visit it during the week of the September 15th and may be 
permanent in the future. 

 We’d like to welcome Nhim Danh as our new Lead Ranger. Building on his previous part time role as a ranger 
with the department, he is excelling at the current position and we’re grateful for his commitment to the parks. 
 

Events Report (Sherry Krask) 

 On August 26th we hosted the 3rd annual Tailgate and Food Truck Party at Central Green. We had around 400 
attendees watching the game, eating from the food vendors, and enjoying the live music and games.  

 Also on August 26th we hosted Dog Day at the Farmers Market. We had over 1,000 people in attendance 
including many of their furry friends. Homeward Bound dog rescue joined us as well as multiple different pet-
themed vendors as well.  

 We had Unfinished Business play at the third Summer Chill on August 18th. We had 302 people attend that 
event.  

 We hosted our first Winterfest committee meeting this month. The Parks Department along with many of our 
downtown community partners are working on getting all of our December information and events together to 
create this year’s Winterfest Newsletter.  

 Downtown After Dark is happening September 15th to 22nd and includes lighting downtown, dance parties, live 
music, discounts at downtown businesses, and more!  

Volunteers Report (Maddy Gordon) 

 For the next few weeks, we are working with Elkhart Academy students to help them in fulfilling a service-
learning requirement to get their degree. They are going to be joining us every Friday morning for about an hour 
learning about and working on something different. For example, they will be taking a field trip to the EEC to 
learn about invasive species, they have done some artistic trashcan painting in American Park, and they will be 
taking a tour of City Hall and learning about the ins and outs of the day-to-day Parks Department.  

 This past weekend at Island of Blues, we had around 16 volunteers join us throughout the day. They assisted 
with bridge greeting, patron counting, supervising the kid’s area, and working the BBQ sauce contest.  



The Honorable 
Rod Roberson 
Mayor  
 

Jamison Czarnecki 
Parks Superintendent 

 

 

Parks & Recreation 

1320 Benham Ave. 

Elkhart, IN 46516 

 

574.295.7275 

Fax:  574.522-7808 
 

 
Programming and Recreation Report (Luisa Ixmatlahua) 
Programs Ended Since Last Meeting: 

  “Bicycle Club Adults” 6 registered 

 “Shark in the Park” started, 29 registered 

 “Body Mind & Spirit” 3 registered  

 “Fly Fishing” started July 15th 7 registered 

 “Super Full Moon Kayaking” 20 Registered and 10 on the wait list.  

 

Current Programs 

 “Passport Program” open to the public 

 “Playground Program” Monday – Friday, Weston Park, Walker Park, Roosevelt Park, Studebaker Park, 

McNaughton Park. Open to the public, average 10 kids at the playground.  

 “Courts and Crafts,”  Roosevelt Center afterschool program for  2nd – 8th grade, 15 participants  

 “Elkhart Kayak Club,” September 2nd ,  2 registered  

 “Fishing Clinic” Sept 9th  and September 23rd, 6 registered  

 “Intro to Photography” September 28, 1 registered 

 “Family Fall Brawl Series” started September 6, 1 registered 

  “Tennis Lessons” September 16, 13 registered 

 

Ranger Report (Ranger Nhim Danh) 

August 1-31, 2023 

Citations 

 None written. 

Various Park Activities and number of people participating. 

 Baseball (422), Basketball (148), Biking (211), Grilling/Picnic (279), Dog Walking (133), Fishing (162), Pickleball 
(58) Playground (659), Sitting/Standing (2024), Skateboarding (95), Soccer (458), Swimming/Water Pad (259), 
Tennis (30), Walking/Jogging (1239).  Grand Total of 6177 patrons. 

Events 

 None.  

Damage (Graffiti/Vandalism/Etc.) 

 August 2, 2023 - While on patrol, Ranger Keene encountered graffiti in the tunnel under the bridge on the path 

to River Greenway on Indiana Ave. He reported the graffiti on 311. 

 



The Honorable 
Rod Roberson 
Mayor  
 

Jamison Czarnecki 
Parks Superintendent 

 

 

Parks & Recreation 

1320 Benham Ave. 

Elkhart, IN 46516 

 

574.295.7275 

Fax:  574.522-7808 
 

 August 9, 2023 - While on patrol, Ranger Nhim, during his duty of 

closing bathrooms, encountered vandalism inside the women’s bathroom at Booth Dog Park. Paper towels were 

used to graffiti the bathroom throughout. Additionally, the soap dispenser was broken off the wall. 

 

Other  

 August 1, 2023 - While on patrol, Ranger Nhim received a call from the Splash Pad supervisor at McNaughton 

Park complaining about two adults without kids hanging around the waterpark and playground area, upsetting 

staff members at the Splash Pad. A ranger responded with the intention to deter the two adults from exercising 

any unwanted activities. Ranger Nhim responded and no further issues occurred for the day. 

 August 6, 2023 - While on patrol, Ranger Keene encountered two homeless individuals sleeping under the open 

air pavilion at Langle Park. Ranger Keene instructed them to clean up their belongings and that they cannot be 

sleeping under the pavilion in the park. They complied without further incident. 

 August 6, 2023 - While on patrol, Ranger Keene met an EPD Officer who briefed him about three aggressive dogs 

running loose on High Dive Park. The dogs, according to a witness, headed towards Island Park. Neither Ranger 

Keene nor the EPD Officer saw them. A Lady who saw the dogs reported that the dogs were running along the 

railroad tracks near High Dive Park. After searching for them, Ranger Keene and the EPD Officer could not find 

the dogs. 

 August 7, 2023 - While on patrol, Ranger Keene received a call at 4:30 PM from the Parks Department to 

investigate an encampment at Franklin’s Landing. Upon arrival, Ranger Keene confirmed that there was indeed 

an encampment. Ranger Keene requested EPD’s assistance. When EPD arrived, a Lady from across the street 

spoke with them. No items were removed from the encampment. EPD informed Ranger Keene that they will 

patrol the area in the event that if someone arrives at the encampment, EPD will handle the situation. 

 August 18, 2023 - While on patrol, Ranger Nhim was informed by a Park-Goer at Studebaker Park regarding two 

individuals drinking alcohol at EEC (Elkhart Environmental Center). When Ranger Nhim arrived at EEC at 7:30 

PM, two young men were confirmed to be drinking at a picnic bench near the River Greenway entrance. Ranger 

Nhim informed the two men that alcoholic consumption is not permitted on park premises. They complied and 

left the park without any incident. 

 August 21, 2023 - While on patrol, Ranger Nhim encountered an encampment at Island Park’s open picnic 

pavilion. Ranger Nhim reported the encampment on 311. 

 August 26, 2023 - While on patrol, Ranger Nhim was dispatched to Tongxiang Park regarding a dying raccoon on 

the Riverwalk path behind the Aquatic Center. Per guidance from the County, Ranger Nhim moved the raccoon 

off the path and into a secluded area to avoid the public’s encounter with it. 

## End of Report ## 


